
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD 

14 February 2020. 
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors G Perham, D Bowater, 
K Cursons, C Chambers, T Morris, R Berry, M Freeman, R Goodchild and P Snelling) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 27 February 2020 commencing at 10.30 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 27 February 2020 
 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-
Committee meeting held on 21 November 2019. 
 

5.   MARKET TRADER REPRESENTATION (Pages 5 - 12) 

 

 To receive a report on market trader representation and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein. (attached) 
 

6.   MARKET PITCH FEES ARREARS PROCEDURE (Pages 13 - 18) 

 

 To receive a proposal for managing pitch fee arrears and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

7.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 19 - 36) 

 

 To receive a general update on market activity and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

8.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 37 - 40) 

 

 To receive a report on the market budgets and to consider the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

9.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

 The Sub-Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following 
resolution should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the 
public interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 
Act 1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential 
nature of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information. The public and press to withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding:   
Market Operations 
 

10.   MARKET OPERATIONS (Pages 41 - 42) 

 

 To receive a proposal for changes to market operations and the 
recommendations contained therein (attached). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 7 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2019 AT 1030 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  G Perham (Chair) 
  D Bowater 
  R Berry 
  P Snelling 
             R Goodchild 
             T Morris 
             K Cursons 
             A Dodwell (substituting for C Chambers) 
             V Harvey (substituting for J M Freeman) 
  

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 
  V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services)  
  A Harrison (Market Manager) 
  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  C Peters (Market Support) 
  P Elmore (Market Trader Representative) 
  
            Members of the Public: 0 

  
17/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor C Chambers 

substituted by Councillor A Dodwell and Councillor J M Freeman substituted 
by Councillor V Harvey. 

 

18/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made.  
 

19/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
  There were no questions from the public. 

   
20/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 29 August 2019 for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 29 August 2019 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub-Committee 21 NOVEMBER 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 8 

21/MK MARKET 12 MONTH REVIEW   
 

 The Sub-Committee received and considered the second 12-month review 
report on the market since relaunch in September 2017. 

 
 The market continued to successfully operate in difficult retail times with a 

consistent level of traders being maintained. More traders had signed up as 
casuals rather than having permanency which reflected the trend of traders not 
committing themselves to one venue in order to attend, for example, festivals.  

 
 The current market provided a range of product categories including food 

products, footwear, clothing, stationery, jewellery, homeware, bags/luggage and 
pet food.  Speciality markets had been delivered alongside the general market 
including the vintage market, Tasty Tuesdays and the French Market. 
 

 The Town Benchmarking Report (People & Places August 2019) showed footfall 
on a Tuesday was significantly higher than on a non-market day.  This suggests 
that the market works as an attractor to the town. The most visited market was 
the Saturday market. Footfall data gathered over a three-year period showed 
footfall remained higher in 2019 compared to 2017 however there had been a 
fall since 2018. This echoed the national trend in High Street footfall counts.  

 
 It was encouraging to note that the higher percentages of survey respondent’s 

age fell below 55 years. This showed the broadening appeal of the market and 
its relevance to younger age ranges.  

 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
22/MK MARKET TRADER REPRESENTATION  
   

The Sub-Committee received and considered a report to ensure trader 
representation was constructively undertaken around the Committee table.  
Officers proposed a recommendation be brought to the February meeting for 
traders to secure affiliation to the National Market Trader Federation (NMTF).  
The trader group would remain self-governed yet would appoint a Liaison Officer 
who would have access to training and guidance from the NMTF. In turn it was 
considered that this would assist representation at Committee meetings. 
 
The Sub-Committee agreed this would be a positive move allowing the traders 
to have access to the NMTF for guidance. 
  
A question was raised by Peter Elmore, Trader Representative, regarding 
traders still operating when Leighton-Linslade Town Council had officially used 
the new Adverse Weather Policy.  The Sub-Committee recognised not all 
traders welcomed the policy, yet it enabled the market to stay open when before 
it may have been cancelled.  The policy had been used once and a longer time 
period would be needed before any consideration be given for a review. Peter 
Elmore was thanked for attending the meeting and providing the views of the 
traders. 
  
RESOLVED to note the report and that Market Trader Representation be 

Page 2



Market Sub-Committee 21 NOVEMBER 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 9 

brought back to the January meeting.  
  
Councillor V Harvey abstained from the vote.  

 
 23/MK    MARKET GENERAL UPDATE  
 

 

The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity including 
information on delivery against market plan targets, trader recruitment and 
promotion, environmental ambitions for the market, on-going highway 
maintenance and marketing of the market.  

 
 

The Street Food Heroes attendance had concluded for this year, yet they had 
requested to return in summer 2020. Two traders who took part in Tasty 
Tuesday had converted to become casual traders.  The Handmade and Craft 
Market continued to grow with 6 new traders this quarter and the Charity and 
Community Groups market stall continued to be utilised on a regular basis as a 
free charity pitch. 
 
The Sub-Committee were informed that officers attended the Annual NABMA 
Conference where various topics were discussed one being How Green is Your 
Market?  Our environmental ambitions were both consistent with and ahead of 
market peers.   
 
Thanks were given to Chloe Peters for her continued work in promoting the 
market via social media where the posts generally reached more people than in 
the previous year with positive results. 
 
A question was raised regarding the placement of the bollards and if this had 
had an effect on the catering stall.  This would be followed up by officers.  A 
question was asked about the new method for collecting waste. The changes 
made sought to avoid contamination of materials separated for recycling as well 
as reducing the need to move large bins around the High Street. Officers were 
monitoring the new system. 
 
Peter Elmore mentioned the road surface particularly under the card stall and 
whether it would be rectified.   
 

         RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
 24/MK   BUDGET REPORT  

 
The Sub-Committee received and considered the budget report for 2019. 
Members agreed to delete two budget lines for Market Bursaries (4572/412) and 
Market IT support (43090/412)  

 
RESOLVED to  
 
1.1 note the report  
1.2 delete market budget lines 4575 and 4309. 

 
 

Page 3



Market Sub-Committee 21 NOVEMBER 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 10 

The meeting closed at 1149 hours. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER  2019. 

 

 

 

Chair 27 FEBRUARY 2020 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    27 February 2020 
 
Title:   Market trader representation  
 
Purpose of the Report: To establish a framework for trader 

representation.  
 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services  
  

Corporate Objective/s Aim: 2 - To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership 
working and initiatives including management of the street market, 
support for local businesses, town and community promotions and 
town centre enhancements.  

Implications:   

Financial   

Human Resources   

Operational/Service delivery √ To provide a clear structure for trader representation at 
Committee meetings and facilitate trader liaison. 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

 Should members be minded, the proposal is to; 
 

1.2 To endorse Leighton Buzzard Market traders have Liaison Officers formally 
recognised and affiliated to the National Market Trader Federation to 
facilitate trader representation at committee meetings.  

 

2. BACKGROUND  
 

2.1 At its meeting on 21/11/19, Committee received a report (Ref: 22/MK) on market 
trader representation. Committee noted the report and that Market Trader 
Representation would be brought back to the January meeting.   

 
2.2 The 2019/20 market annual work plan has a target activity: no.9, to review the 

‘engagement with traders / format for Committee trader representation’. 
 

2.3 Committee has expressed its wish to maintain trader representation, with non-
voting rights around the table.  

 
3. TRADER REPRESENTATION AT COMMITTEE 

 
3.1 Officers recommend that Committee confirms the requirement for Leighton 

Buzzard Market traders to secure affiliation to the National Market Trader 
Federation (NMTF) to support their representation at Committee meetings 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
  

through affiliation to the National Market Traders Federation.  
 

3.2 A representative does not have to be a member of the current trader group 
though it would be preferable if s/he was. It would also be considered a good 
spread of representation if both Tuesday and Saturday market traders were 
engaged. Whilst some traders attend both markets, not all do, and the differing 
perspectives would add value to engagement with traders. Thus, the aim would 
be to secure 2 NMTF affiliated traders.  

 
3.3 The NMTF sets out how it will work with locality-based trader representation 

groups in its document, ‘Group Guidelines’, attached at Appendix A. 
 

3.4 On Tuesday 28 February, the NMTF Field Officer attended the market and spoke 
to some traders. The field officer is supportive of the Council’s approach and 
feels there would be buy-in from traders. NMTF is willing to work with traders and 
the Council towards this aim:   

 
 “We would recommend that with such a volume of traders that a NMTF Group 
 is formed in order to provide a clear communication path that can represent 
 the market at committee meetings and speak on behalf of the traders as a 
 collective voice.   We aim to streamline the red tape to a minimum and can 
 mediate where necessary.     
 
 As you will have seen the objectives from our NMTF Group guidelines we 
 require a NMTF member to undertake the role of a Liaison Officer [LO].  I feel 
 it would be beneficial to have LO representation for both Tuesday and 
 Saturday markets due to the change in traders on these days.  The LO will be 
 able to speak for the market as ‘one voice’ on matters relating to the market 
 as a whole, however we will not be able to represent any trader on any 
 individual issues unless they are a member of the NMTF.  LO’s also have the 
 advantage of tapping into the NMTF for advice and guidance which should 
 enable filtration on any common queries.   
 
 We will require the names and signatures of the traders who wish to be 
 included in the NMTF Group and represented according to the NMTF Group 
 guidelines.  It may be necessary for me to return to explain how a NMTF 
 benefits the traders and how we wish to work competently and in unison with 
 yourselves.”  

(NMTF Field Worker 04/02/20) 
 

4.  CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 To ensure trader representation is constructively undertaken, notwithstanding 

occasions when representation disagrees with Committee, officers recommend 
to Committee that is sets out its requirements for trader representation.  That 
being, Leighton Buzzard Market traders to have Liaison Officers formally 
recognised and affiliated to the National Market Trader Federation.  

 
END 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

NMTF GROUP GUIDELINES 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 7



1. BACKGROUND 

1.1. At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 18 April 2016, members voted to incorporate and 

decided upon a set of Articles of Association that will govern NMTF Ltd from 1 July 2016. 

1.2. Before 1 July 2016, local groups of members were able to be recognised as NMTF Branches 

and rules governing their formation and conduct were part of the NMTF’s Constitution.  

1.3. NMTF Branches are not included as part of the Articles of Association of NMTF Ltd.  

1.4. Directors of NMTF Ltd, the Executive Board, agreed on 16 May 2016 that the national body 

will continue to recognise members who form working groups to achieve common goals. 

1.5. These guidelines outline a programme by which members who form working groups to 

achieve common goals can receive recognition from NMTF Ltd. 

1.6. This programme will be called NMTF Groups. Head Office will coordinate, promote and 

support an NMTF Groups Network across the UK. 

 

2. PURPOSE 

2.1. The objects of NMTF Ltd are to safeguard, promote and develop the retail markets and 

events industry for the benefit, and in the best interests of, its members. 

2.2. In carrying out its objects, NMTF Ltd shall promote equality of opportunity and oppose any 

form of discrimination on grounds of race, ethnic origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, 

disability or religion. 

2.3. Members of NMTF Ltd are encouraged to work together in solidarity to achieve common 

goals and provide one another with mutual support and understanding. 

2.4. NMTF Groups are encouraged to represent the mutual interests of their members in order 

to safeguard, promote and develop the market(s) or event(s) where they trade. 

 

3. GOVERNANCE OF NMTF GROUPS 

3.1. The objects and structure of an NMTF Group are for its members to decide. NMTF Groups 

are autonomous from NMTF Ltd.  

 
Page 8



4. RECOGNITION BY NMTF LTD 

4.1. To be recognised as an NMTF Group by NMTF Ltd all members of a group must trade from 

the same location (e.g. NMTF Barnsley Group, NMTF Cambridge Street Traders Group) or 

have a shared trading connection (e.g. NMTF Historic Traders Group, NMTF Fairs Group). 

4.2. To be recognised as an NMTF Group by NMTF Ltd each group must have a Liaison Officer 

who will liaise with Head Office on behalf of the NMTF Group.  

4.2.1. NMTF Groups with more than 20 members can nominate one additional Liaison 

Officer who will liaise with Head Office on behalf of the NMTF Group. 

4.2.2. A Liaison Officer must hold an active membership of NMTF Ltd. 

4.2.3. Duties of a Liaison Officer are outlined in Section 6 

4.2.4. The removal of recognition as a Liaison Officer is outlined in Section 7 

4.3. NMTF Groups must register with NMTF Ltd on an annual basis to ensure continuation of 

recognition from NMTF Ltd.  

4.3.1. NMTF Groups without a Liaison Officer will not be recognised as an NMTF Group. 

4.4. An appropriate Market Manager and/or Chief Executive will be informed of the name and 

contact details of the Liaison Officer(s) for the NMTF Group.  

 

5. BENEFITS OF BEING A RECOGNISED NMTF GROUP 

5.1. NMTF Ltd will offer a range of benefits in order to encourage the formation and support the 

sustainability of an NMTF Group.  

5.2. NMTF Ltd reserve the right to withdraw and introduce benefits from time to time. Liaison 

Officers will be informed in advance of any changes. 

5.3. Benefits available to NMTF Groups include: 

5.3.1. Use of the NMTF Group name, NMTF Groups Network logo in any communications 

collateral, which includes but is not limited to: business cards, newsletters, e-bulletins 

and on websites and social media.  

5.3.2. Free travel and free attendance for recognised Liaison Officers at the Annual 

General Meeting of NMTF Ltd (AGM). 
Page 9



5.3.2.1. Travel by standard class public transport will be reimbursed. Attendance 

includes overnight accommodation.  

5.3.2.2. If all recognised Liaison Officers for the NMTF Group are unable to attend the 

AGM, they may nominate one member of the NMTF Group, who must also be a 

member of NMTF Ltd, to attend in their place.  

5.3.3. Free membership of NMTF Ltd for recognised Liaison Officers.  

5.3.3.1. Issued by voucher at the AGM only redeemable against the renewal of a 

membership of the NMTF in the name of the recognised Liaison Officer. 

5.3.3.2. Members nominated to attend the AGM in the place of a recognised Liaison 

Officer are not eligible to claim free membership of NMTF Ltd.  

5.3.3.3. Voucher limited to the price of a single membership of NMTF Ltd at the time of 

the AGM. 

5.3.3.4. Liaison Officers must have been in the role for a minimum of six months. 

5.3.4. Priority access to advice and guidance from Head Office, including attendance at 

meetings by Field Support Officers (subject to availability) 

5.3.5. Dedicated area in the NMTF’s online portal, including access to a forum for Liaison 

Officers.  

5.3.6. Free attendance for up to two Liaison Officers at a series of quarterly training 

events held at the Head Office of NMTF Ltd in Barnsley, South Yorkshire (Spring 2017.) 

 

6. DUTIES OF A LIASON OFFICER 

6.1. To act on behalf of the members of the NMTF Group in any matter affecting their business 

and professional interests. 

6.2. To take a leading role in the coordination of activities undertaken by members of the NMTF 

Group.  

6.3. To undertake 6.1 to 6.2 in a fair and just manner. 

6.4. To act as the main contact(s) for Head Office with regards to any queries they may have, 

which include but are not limited to: 
Page 10



6.4.1. Issues from members of NMTF Ltd who contact Head Office for advice affecting their 

business related to the trading location or connection represented by the NMTF Group. 

6.4.2. Press enquiries from local and regional media related to the trading location or 

connection represented by the NMTF Group. 

6.4.3. Invitations to represent the NMTF Group at regional and national events related to the 

sector (e.g. Annual Reception of the All Party Parliamentary Markets Group).  

6.5. To keep Head Office updated with any change in circumstances to the position of Liaison 

Officer for the NMTF Group (e.g. contact details, retirement, etc.) 

 

7. REMOVAL OF RECOGNITION AS A LIAISON OFFICER 

7.1. Voluntary removal from role by a Liaison Officer 

7.1.1. Liaison Officers may step down at any time and for any reason by providing a verbal 

or written request to Head Office. 

7.2. Expiration of membership of NMTF Ltd 

7.2.1. Liaison Officers will automatically lose recognition by NMTF Ltd if their membership 

of the NMTF expires and they fail to renew. 

7.3. Upheld allegations of misconduct from members of NMTF Ltd towards Liaison Officers  

7.3.1. NMTF Ltd reserve the right to remove recognition of a Liaison Officer following 

investigations into allegations of misconduct. 

7.3.2. Allegations of misconduct will be investigated by Head Office in a fair and just 

manner. 

7.3.3. Examples of misconduct include but are not limited to: 

7.3.3.1. Acting contrary to the purpose of NMTF Ltd as outlined in 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3. 

7.3.3.2. Refusal to act on behalf of the members of NMTF Ltd involved unless under 

reasonable circumstances. 

7.3.3.3. Use of the role for personal gain, whether financial or otherwise. 

7.3.4. If recognition of a Liaison Officer has been removed by Head Office, the affected 

individual may appeal to the President of NMTF Ltd who will investigate in a fair and 
Page 11



just manner. During this period of investigation the affected individual will remain 

recognised as a Liaison Officer by NMTF Ltd. The decision of the President of NMTF 

Ltd following his/her investigations is final. 

7.4.  An appropriate Market Manager and/or Chief Executive will be informed of the removal of 

recognition of the Liaison Officer(s) for the NMTF Group. 

 

8. FINANCE 

8.1. The financial matters of an NMTF Groups are for its members to decide. NMTF Groups are 

autonomous from NMTF Ltd. 

 

9.  REVIEW  

9.1. NMTF Group Guidelines will be reviewed annually the month proceeding the AGM of NMTF 

Ltd. 

 

10.  KEY CONTACTS AT NMTF LTD 

 

• Brendan Dyson, Field Support Officer 

brendan.dyson@nmtf.co.uk, 07792 868 854 

• Tania Murphy, Field Support Officer 

tania.murphy@nmtf.co.uk, 07876 190 088 

• Chris Savage, Projects Manager 

chris.savage@nmtf.co.uk, 01226 352 804 

• Tracey Jones, PA to the Chief Executive 

tracey.jones@nmtf.co.uk, 01226 352 805 

 

NMTF, Hampton House, Hawshaw Lane,  

Hoyland, Barnsley, S74 0HA 

Page 12

mailto:brendan.dyson@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:tania.murphy@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:chris.savage@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:tracey.jones@nmtf.co.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:   27 February 2020 
 
Title:    Market Pitch Fee Arrears Procedure    
 
Purpose of the Report:  For Committee to consider the procedure   
 
Contact Officer:     Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic 
      Services Committee 
 

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim: 2 - To continue to support a 
vibrant town through partnership working and initiatives including 
management of the street market, support for local businesses, 
town and community promotions and town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial √ New policy to ensure satisfactory financial management  

Human Resources   

Operational/Service delivery √ New Policy to guide Council employees in procedures 
addressing rent arrears   

Procedural/Legal √ Policy document  

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded, the proposal is; 
 
1.1 To recommend the adoption of the Market Rent Arrears Policy to the 

Cultural and Economic Partnership Committee and thereafter, Policy and 
Finance Committee.  

 
 

2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 Previously, the Council has taken legal action with traders due to rent
 arrears which is time consuming in terms of recouping owed income. There is 
 no procedure currently in place giving guidelines as to how and when arrears 
 are recouped. To date, through negotiation, staff have initiated 
 repayment plans to support trader’s ongoing attendance.  
 
2.2 Traders sign a Licence Agreement to have possession of a pitch on the market 
 and upon signing, accept their obligation to pay a regular pitch fee on each 
 market day. The understanding between the two parties is a business 
 arrangement. Traders have a duty to communicate with the Council. When 
 there has been silence and absence from the trader, their arrears mount up. 
 Whilst Committee will want to be supportive of its traders, it will be mindful  of 
 its financial duties to the public purse and seek to recoup arrears in a 
 reasonable manner for all parties. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



  
 
2.3 The creation of a Market Trader Pitch Fee Arrears Procedure will provide a 
 transparent process for managing trader arrears and enable staff to operate 
 within given parameters when securing arrears and negotiating a repayment 
 plan (Appendix A).  It also states the expectation on traders to communicate 
 with the Council promptly thus avoid accruing debt.  
 

2.4 It is not realistic to expect every possible circumstance that may occur causing 
 a trader’s absence from the market. There may be occasions when discretion 
 is needed. However, the proposed procedure sets out guidelines to facilitate 
 such situations. 
  
3. TRADER FEEDBACK ON DRAFT PROCEDURE  

 
3.1 The draft procedure was shared with all traders with an invitation to contact the 
 Market Manager with comments and feedback prior to the final draft 
 being presented to Committee for its consideration. No responses were 
 received.  

 
4. SUMMARY 
 
4.1    The Market Trader Rent Arrears Procedure provides transparency and structure 

to securing arrears.  
 
4.2 The procedure enables the Council to provide a reasonable and supportive 

timeframe for traders to pay their arrears and fairly balances the Council’s own 
requirements to provide good financial management processes.  

 
 
 END 

Page 14



 

Jan 2020 V5 

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD  
Tel: 01525 631920 
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

Website: www. 

 
LEIGHTON BUZZARD MARKET TRADER PITCH FEE ARREARS PROCEDURE 

 
Our Policy  
 
The Council’s approach to market pitch fees, (rent or toll) arrears is to prevent, manage 
and recover arrears within reasonable timescales and maintain satisfactory financial 
management arrangements of the public purse and operational consistency of the 
market. It is not to apply unreasonable penalties to traders who fall into arrears.  
 
The Council expects the trader to attend the market as per their licence to trade. The 
payment of pitch fees is a primary responsibility of every trader and is a central 
obligation of the trader agreement. The Council expects all traders to pay their pitch 
fee on time in accordance with their trader agreement.  
 
The Council will take prompt, appropriate and effective action to prevent and manage 
pitch fee arrears. Debt will always be pursued. 
 
It is the named trader on the signed Market Licence Agreement, the licensee, that shall 
remain liable for absence and any subsequent debt. 
 
 
The Purpose of this Procedure 
 
The Council acknowledge that some traders may have difficulties from time to time in 
making regular pitch fee payments (after illness for example). Reasonable repayment 
timescales are explained in this procedure and when reasons for absence are 
satisfactorily evidenced, assistance may be offered to overcome these difficulties 
through arranging an arrears payment plan. 
 
The procedure will: 
 

 prevent rent arrears accruing 
 

 clarify the process for dealing with rent arrears 
 

 detail the assistance the Council can offer to tackle arrears 
 
This procedure will need to be read in conjunction with other market policy and 
procedure documents, such as the Rules and Regulations, Trader Licence Agreement 
and Market Disciplinary Procedure.  
 
Traders are strongly encouraged to advise the Market Manager or their representative, 
in advance of any planned absences and if possible, as soon as practicable, any 
unplanned absences. Personal circumstances will be held in confidence and 
discernment will be applied in supporting all parties manage any given situation. The 
Council maintains the right to apply discretion as per any given circumstance.   

Page 15



 

Jan 2020 V5 

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD  
Tel: 01525 631920 
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

Website: www. 

 
Procedure 
 
For the purposes of clarity, each market day, Tuesday and Saturday, shall be treated 
independently of the other. Therefore, for example, four days absence of the Tuesday 
market is separate from four days absence from the Saturday market.  
 
Traders, (with permanent status) will be expected to utilise their allocated 4 ‘holiday’ 
days (free attendance/absence days per market) to manage their absence. The 
holiday period runs from 1st April to 31st March. Unused holidays within the given 
period will not be carried forward and payment for unused days will not be provided 
by the Council.  
 
Absence will be managed using the Market Trader Disciplinary procedure which 
incorporates an appeals procedure, and non-payment within the timescales of this 
procedure or an agreed payment plan will be considered a ‘serious breach’, i.e. Stage 
3. Second Warning (Final).  
 
1. One day absences shall be repaid within 14 days of the absence date. 
 
2. Subject to the guidelines specified, no refunds will be given on advance payments 

if traders or their representatives are absent from the market. 
 
3. Notice of the licence to trade being terminated in the event of 4 consecutive 

absences by a trader will be issued when no notification has been given to the 
Market Manager, or their representative of an absence. 

  
Planned absence - examples include yet are not exhaustive of: 
 

 Funeral of a relative. 

 Hospital stays i.e. planned operations.  

 Long-term overseas stays. 
 
4.   50% of pitch fees due will be paid in advance of any planned absence that is for 4 

weeks or over. The remainder will be paid within 14 days of the trader’s return in 
addition to the standard daily pitch fee, or in the agreed repayment plan period.   

   
Unplanned absence - examples include yet are not exhaustive of: 
 

 The death of a relative. 

 Short-term sickness - absence through illness and a presentation of a medical 
fit note signed by a medical professional. (Relevant to the licensee, not their 
representative.) 

 Vehicle breakdown. 
 

5.  Full arrears payment will be expected within 14 Days following return to the       
market, this is in addition to the standard daily pitch fee, unless a payment plan 

 has previously been agreed.   

Page 16



 

Jan 2020 V5 

The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD  
Tel: 01525 631920 
Email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 
Website: www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

Website: www. 

 
Long-term sickness   

 
6.    On the occasion of long-term sickness, the first 2 weeks of sickness absence are 

  payable in full and must be paid for in advance of presentation of any further    
medical fit notes signed by a medical professional. Subsequent absence is free 
on provision that pitch occupancy is only retained on continuous sick notes. If 
medical certificates stop being provided, following a period of 14 days, the Market 
Trader Disciplinary procedure will be invoked.  

 

Guidelines for payment plans - a structured payment plan to clear arrears will follow 
the general rules as set out in the table below.  

A missed payment shall invoke a Stage 2. Written Warning with continued missed 
payments escalating to a Stage 3. Final Written Warning and the potential for 
termination of the trader’s right to trade on the market, Stage 4. Termination of Licence.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Example repayment plans: 
 

Markets days 
missed 

Period of 
repayment plan 

Amount due per week in addition to 
standard pitch fee 

1 day at £30 
per day = £30 

1 week 
£30 + the standard pitch fee of £30 

= £60 

3 days at £30 
per day = £90 

owed 
4 weeks  

£22.50 per wk. + the standard pitch 
fee of £30 = £52.50 

 
 
 

Markets days 
missed 

Period of 
repayment plan 

Amount due per week in addition to 
standard pitch fee 

Up to 2 days 2 weeks  2 equal payments of arrears owed 

Up to 4 days 4 weeks 4 equal payments of arrears owed 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 

 

Market Sub Committee                      

Date:          22 February 2020 

Title:         Market General Update. 

Purpose of the Report:                       To provide an update on market activity. 

Contact Officer/s:                            Adrian Harrison, Market Manager, Chloe 

Peters, Market Support, Vivien Cannon, 

Head of Cultural & Economic Services  

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Five Year Plan – To continue to support a vibrant town 
through partnership working & initiatives including 
management of the street market, support businesses, town 
& community promotions & town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial √ Utilising annual budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ Existing Market Delivery & Activity Plans – Updates  
Proposed Market Delivery & Activity Plans   

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Should members be minded the recommendations are: 
 

1.1 To note the report.  

1.2 To endorse the annual delivery and market activity work plans for 2020/21. 

1.3 To endorse the “Mission For Markets Manifesto” as per para. 4.1. 

1.4      To endorse the revised start-up trader opportunity as per para. 8.3, ceasing 

the name ‘Pop-Up’ to ‘Start-Up Market Trader Pitch’ and associated 

criteria.  

 

2      DELIVERY PLAN UPDATES FOR QUARTER 3, OCT – DEC 2019/2020  

2.1    The table below provides an update on Themed and Speciality Markets. 
 

 

 Themed Markets 2019/20 Comments 

13th April Easter Ride-out Delivered 

16th April  Easter Egg Hunt Delivered 

17th – 31st May Love your local Market fortnight,  #LYLM Delivered 

6th July  Independents’ Day Delivered 

6th August  National Children’s Play Day Delivered 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

  

   

 

 
 

2.1  Market trader recruitment updates. 
 

2.1.1. The table below presents the pitch usage figures for Qu. 3.   
 

 

 
Note:  

 Saturday 2 Nov inclement weather policy invoked; 3 traders attended. 

 A point of interest - Tuesday, 31 Dec - the mid Christmas holiday was not 
well attended by permanent traders; 11 chose not to attend. 

 
2.2.2 The table below presents the trader joined / left, figures for Qu.3: 
 

Trader type Qu. 1 
Joined 

Qu. 1 
Left 

Qu. 2 
Joined  

Qu. 2 
Left 

Qu. 3 
Joined 

Qu. 3 
Left 

Permanent 3 0 1 1 2 1 

Casual 20 - 7 - 17 - 

Farmers 0 0 1 0 2 0 

Craft 0 0 6 0 2 0 

Charities, Comm Groups 12 - 9 - 10 - 

Pop Up 4 - 0 - 3 - 

 

 1x new permanent trader for Tuesday and Saturday markets. 
 
 

22nd October Children’s Halloween Letter Hunt Delivered 

24th December Christmas Eve Market Delivered 

 Visiting Market 2019/2020  

Fri 26th April, 31st May, 28th June, 
26th July, 30th August, 27th  
(Last Friday of the month) 

Street Food Heroes Delivered 

Fri 25th – Sat 26th October 
 

France at Home Market Delivered 

 Speciality Markets 2019/2020  

29th June 
 

Vintage, Retro and Collectables Market 
 

Delivered 

18th June, 16th July, 13th August Tasty Tuesday Delivered 

30th Nov Christmas Market Delivered 

TBC 2020 Community Fair Deferred to 
2020 

Qu. 1 Pitches 
Used 

Qu. 2 Pitches 
Used  

Qy.3 Pitches 
Used 

Apr-19 332 Jul-19 393 Oct-19 376 

May-19 344 Aug-19 342 Nov-19 390 

June-19 395 Sep-19 299 Dec-19 382 

Page 20



 

  

   

 

 
 
2.2.3   Farmers market 
 

1x new trader.  
 
2.2.4   Pop-Up market (supporting start-up businesses)  
 

 3x new Pop-Up market traders this quarter.  
 

2.2.5 Handmade and Craft market (HM&C) (runs March to December)  
 

           2x new traders this quarter.  
 
2.2.6 Charity Pitch 
 

10x groups utilised this pitch in the 3rd quarter. One charity gave feedback that 
they achieved an income over £600 from their attendance.  

 
3. ANNUAL MARKET WORK PLAN 
 

  3.1 At its meeting on 21 February 2019 (Ref.6.3), Committee endorsed the annual 
work plan.  Work updates are presented for Committee’s consideration at 
Appendix A. 

 
  3.2 The proposed annual work plan for 2020/21 and market activity plan for 2020/21 

are drafted for Committee’s consideration, attached at Appendix B.  
 

4.    GENERAL UPDATES 
  
4.1    In 2019, “Mission For Markets” (MFM) published their Market Manifesto 

(attached at Appendix D). MFM is a joint campaign run by the National 
Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) and the National Market 
Federation of Traders (NMTF). Both are key industry organisations representing 
the interests of operators and traders in the UK. Whilst Committee will no doubt 
be in support of all 7 listed manifesto statements, a pertinent one for financial 
impact is point number 4, titled Business Rates.  

 
 Committee is asked to consider giving its support to the manifesto thus its 

support to the combined efforts of the MFM campaign members to continue its 
lobbying for recognition and support of market specific issues.  

 
4.2 On 28/01/20, a Field Officer from the National Market Traders Federation 

 attended the market. Although it was quite late in the day when they 

 attended the High St. with traders packing away, they commented that the 

 Tuesday market is “probably one of the strongest in the area”. They had 

 recently observed in their travels around markets that Tuesday outdoor 

 markets “are becoming a rarity”. Yet they commented that even though it 

Page 21



 

  

   

 

 was ‘kipper season’ (the post-Christmas slump) and that the  weather was not 

 favourable, our market appears to have a good volume of traders.  

 

 

5 SOCIAL MEDIA PLATFORMS  
          
5.1  Facebook           

The table below provides an insight to Facebook activity. 

Facebook 
Analytics 

   Qu. 1   
Qu.2 

 
Qu.3 

 Apr May June Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

New likes 29 31 27 n/a 37 25 61 41 21 

Total Likes 
(Includes unlikes) 

849 880 906 927 963 985 1043 1081 1099 

Organic 
Posts Reach 

19,800 17,676 29,653 15,711 14,151 12,154 30,169 18,720 66,446 

Reactions, 
Comments & 
Shares 

487 551 653 406 299 277 855 535 392 

 

From Oct – Nov 2019 there were 123 new likes, an organic reach of 115,335 

and interaction of 1782. There are a couple of anomalies; In October we ran a 

competition and in December we shared a post about the Anglian Water issue, 

that had a reach of over 12.3k – this will contribute towards the higher figures 

reported above. Likes have increased by almost 12% since the end of last 

quarter, and there has been a 50% increase in likes since December 2018. 

5.2     Instagram 

It is difficult to report on Instagram as the analytics tool does not allow you to 

change the reporting period and only allows reporting for the last 7 days. The 

last report logged for this period detail is the 01 January. 

Instagram Analytics          
2019 
06-Jan  

06-Jun  Aug  Oct 2020 
01-Jan  

Followers 363 601 741 801 938 

Accounts Reached (previous 7 days) 296 763 422 480 524 

Impressions (previous 7 days) 1434 5878 2450 3061 1429 

 

          There is a 158% increase in followers since January 2019. The latest figures 
show that the market’s following has grown more than 26% since August. 
 

5.3     Twitter       

Page 22



 

  

   

 

          The table below shows an increase in Twitter followers and a maintained figure 

for profile visits. Tweet impressions are down slightly. This could be due to 

several factors; most commonly it is changes with algorithms which impacts 

post/hashtag content. 

 
As of 31st December 2019, total followers = 326 

5.4      Google Analytics (website) 

           The following table shows the performance of the market website. 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 
Leighton Buzzard has a 4.1 star rating (out of 5)  on Google My Business with 
a total of 155 reviews. 

 
7        MARKET PROMOTION (PRINTED)   

7.1     Continued local promotion is undertaken via Bee Local Magazine and the Town 

Council’s About Town newsletter. Officers are planning ahead to include 

editorial in a national trade paper: Market Trader News. This is a monthly 

produced paper that is free and distributed across the country to traders and 

operators alike.  

           Listings on the National Market Traders Federation website have been updated 

to individually reference speciality markets and enable a more focused search 

for specialised traders, i.e. Handmade and Craft, etc. 

7.2 A new promotional activity that recognises the interaction between traders and 

customers was being drafted at the time of writing this report with plans to 

Twitter Analytics  Qu.1    Qu.2    Qu.3  

  
 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Tweets 46 43 39 39 42 27 34 34 34 

Tweet Impressions 28.6k 20.6k 31.1k 29.3k 18k 11.8k 14.2k 13.5k 22.6k 

New Followers 18 10 11 13 3 7 16 9 13 

Mentions 5 7 20 8 5 1 5 6 3 

Profile Visits 145 66 70 65 43 35 38 41 62 

Google  
Analytics 

Qu.1 Qu.2 Qu.3 

 Apr May June Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

No of people 
who found 
site 

4,942 5,635 n/a 4,858 5,199 5,585 10,922 n/a 7,356 

Visited the 
Website 

76 71 n/a 69 90 63 89 n/a 68 

Asked for 
directions 

41 38 n/a 49 59 49 37 n/a 72 

Contacted the  
Council after 
looking at site 

 2 n/a 2 4 5 5 n/a 4 

Page 23



 

  

   

 

launch in February. Trader of The Month asks customers to put forward a 

trader’s name if they feel they have done a great job on serving them, providing 

products that have been requested, etc. The trader put forward will be 

celebrated and receive additional publicity. Promotional words are presented 

below: 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
8.       SPECIALITY MARKETS   
 
8.1    The return of Street Food Heroes is confirmed for 2020. Their booking is once a 

month on Friday evenings starting in March, continuing throughout the summer 
finishing in September. Officers are currently in discussion with two other 
visiting markets and hope to confirm attendance at Committee’s next meeting. 
 

8.2 Officers have reviewed the delivery arrangements of the Pop-Up market.   
 

 Current practice Workable solution 

1 

Previous arrangements were that the Council’s 
insurers would agree to cover a start-up trader’s 
public liability for their pitch. This is no longer the 
case which puts an emphasis on the traders to 
secure their own public liability insurance. 

Officers have liaised with the National 
Market Trader Federation (NMTF) and now 
signpost prospective traders to NMTF for 
information on insurer details to secure one-
day cover.  
 

2 

The first Saturday has been promoted as a Pop-
Up speciality market however the reality is that 
this circumstance does not live up to the 
expectations of other speciality market days 
because it is dependent upon the numbers of 
start-ups attending. 
  
Customer expectations need to be managed. 
The assumption is for a full speciality market 
they are accustomed to like Farmers and 
Handmade & Craft speciality markets.  

Officers propose to stop promoting a 
specific day for the Pop-Up and allow start-
up traders to attend any market date, 
Saturday and Tuesdays. 
 
The key element is to facilitate start-ups. 

We'd love for you to take part in our new Trader of the month initiative. 

 Have one of our traders gone above and beyond? 

 Offered an exceptional service? 

 Always go the extra mile? 

 Please let us know in the comments which trader has made you smile and 

why. 

 We will choose one nominated trader per month, and we will recognise them 

on social media and present them with a certificate. 

Page 24



 

  

   

 

3 

The term Pop-Up is generally applied to a group 
of traders who utilise a venue/space on a short-
term basis. It can be, yet not exclusively 
therefore, associated with start-up businesses.  
 
When prospective traders contact the council, 
officers direct them to the Pop-Up information as 
it is not obvious in its association with start-ups. 

Officers propose to promote the start-up 
opportunity by calling it by the name – Start-
Up as a Market Trader Pitch/Start-Up 
pitches thus removing any doubt and better 
directing prospective traders to the correct 
information – a Plain English approach. 

 
8.3:  With the above review information in mind, Officers propose the new criteria as 

set out below.  
 

END 

Start-Up Market Trader Pitch Criteria 

This initiative provides the platform for creating new market traders. It gives local business 

start-ups and established businesses the opportunity to test the market with a product or 

service and see if being a Market Trader works for you. Whether you are self-employed, a 

small business or a young entrepreneur you can take advantage of this opportunity.  

This is exclusive to: 
Start-up businesses based within the prefix of postcode LU7. 
Established businesses based within the prefix of postcode LU7. 
 
Eligibility Criteria 

 The business must be based in the prefix postcode of LU7. 

 Businesses within the LU7 prefix can join this initiative regardless of having a ‘shop 
front’. 

 There are 3 start-up market stall opportunities to trade within a 12-month calendar 

period.  these occasions must be taken within a 3-month period on our Charter 

Market. 

 This offering is available at either a Tuesday or Saturday Charter Market, subject to 

availability. 

 The Business cannot have traded on a market before. 

 The Business cannot have traded at LB Market within the last 12 months or they will 

qualify as a casual trader, at a cost of £23. 

 It costs £15 per attendance to trade at LB Market as a start-up market trader, this is 

payable 7 days in advance via bank transfer. 

 The business must have Public Liability Insurance (Minimum £5m). 

 The business will be entitled to one 3m x 3m gazebo, a table, refuse collection and 

free parking if required. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 27/02/20 

 

Task 

Target 

date 

Committee  

Update – 27 February 2020 

Delivery 

status 

1 Waste Management 
The Council’s waste management 
contract is due for renewal this year. 
Officers will research options for the 
market. 

Oct 19 Grounds & 
Enviro’nt 
P&F 

 
Ref. 40, 11/09/19, Council entered into new waste 
management contract. 
 

 
 

G 

2 Reducing Waste 
Officers explore ways and work up a 
campaign approach that seeks to 
encourage less reliance on ‘once 
only’ uses for bags and receptacles 
by traders and consumers alike. 

Summer 
2019 

Market Sub  
Ref. 15/MK, 29/08/19, Market Environmental Ambitions 
activity reported to Committee. 

 
 

G 

3 Cashless Payments 
Officers will review the current 
procedure with the view to move to 
cashless payments for safety and 
administrative efficiency. 

27 Feb Operational Current position – speciality markets for 2019/2020 
(Vintage, Tasty Tuesday, Vegan) payments received by 
advance via BACS – minimum of admin required.  
Security protocol in place for escorting Market Manager to 
office following rent collection. Review of safety practices 
supports change to cashless payments.   

 
 

A 

4 Compliance procedure – (trader 
compliance/complaints), Officers will 
review the procedure. 

29 Aug 
2 Sep  
16 Sept 

Market Sub  
C&E 
P&F  

 
Ref 7/MK:  Committee endorsed the Market Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure at its meeting on 23/05/19. 
Ref 20/PF: Committee endorsed the Market Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure and Critical Incident procedure at its 
meeting on 17/06/19. 
 
 

 
 

G 

5 Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E 

Ongoing – as part of the Annual review undertaken 
September 2019 (Ref: action No.11)  

 

G 

6 Adverse weather procedure 
Officers will review the procedure. 

29 July C&E  
P&F 

30/04/19 – informal officer/trader workshop took place to 
explore issues and options. 

 
 

G 

P
age 27



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 27/02/20 

Council insurer liaison needed for clarity of permisable 
action – not likely to be confirmed until July ’19. 
Ref:11/CE: C&E Committee endorsed the seperation of 
Critical Incident and Adverse Weather proceedures.  
Ref:20/PF, 17/06/19-  Committee endorsed the Critical 
Incident procedure. 
Ref: 48 (g), Council approved the Adverse Weather Policy 
and Disclaimer. Policy used on 04/11/19 
 
 

7 Great British Market Awards 
This is an annual award led by the 
National Association of British 
Market Authorities (NABMA). 
Officers will research the award 
categories and assess the criteria in 
readiness to enter the market for an 
award. 

2020- 
2021 

Operational Explore clarification on the different categories and criteria 
used this year. To be considered for 2020/21. (The call for 
applications takes place in autumn.)  
 
Transferred to 2020/21 work plan. 

 
 
 

R 

8 Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers 
have remained constant for some 
time. Officers will research similar 
markets and reassess the guidance 
documents and its brand - aiming to 
improve trader numbers. 

27 Feb 
‘20 

Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

Liaison with Farmers market when work progresses – TBC. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  recommendation 
for P&F for endorsement – if the need for alterations are 
identified.  
 
 

 
 

A 

9 Engagement with traders / format 
for Committee trader 
representation 
Officers will review the current 
activity giving structure to 
representation and in doing so seek 
advice from the National Market 
Traders Federation (NMTF). 

27 Feb 
‘20 

Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

NMTF have a revised scheme for supporting trader 
representations.  
Ref: 22/MK – 21/11/19 - Proposal drafted for Committee 
consideration.   
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

A 

10 Trader Bursary 
Officers will review the scheme. 

21 Nov 
‘19 

 No bursaries have been requested for the last 2 financial 
years.  

 

G 

P
age 28



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 27/02/20 

Ref: 24/MK – 21/11/19, resolved to delete budget line. 

11 Annual monitoring review  
By end September on relaunch 
anniversary.  
 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E (if 
recommend
ations 
apply) 

Inc. point No.5 above - Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing. Ongoing monitoring and review as necessary. 
Ref: 21/MK – 21/11/19, report received.  

 
 

G 

 
 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix B 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

DRAFT 27/02/2020 V1 

 

Task 

Target date Committee  

Update – DRAFT  

Delivery 

status 

1 Market Environmental Ambitions 
Deliver campaign that to encourage 
less reliance on ‘once only’ uses for 
plastic bags and receptacles by traders 
and consumers alike. 

ongoing Operational Ref. 15/MK, 29/08/19, Market Environmental 
Ambitions. 
 
Ongoing from 2019/20 

 
 

A 

2 Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers have 
remained constant for some time. 
Officers will research similar markets 
and reassess the guidance documents 
and its brand - aiming to improve trader 
numbers. 

Spring 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Liaison with Farmers market when work 
progresses – TBC. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  
 
Deferred from 2019/20 

 

3 Market Rules and Regulations, 
Trader Licence - annual review  
To review and update according to 
industry changes/standards as 
identified and to reflect the updating of 
Council policies and procedures. 

Spring  2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  
recommendation for P&F for endorsement – if 
the need for alterations are identified.  
 

 

4 Great British Market Awards 
This is an annual award led by the 
National Association of British Market 
Authorities (NABMA). Officers will 
research the award categories and 
assess the criteria in readiness to enter 
the market for an award. 

Autumn – 
submission 
date to be 
announced 

Operational Transferred to 2020/21 work plan.  
 
 
 

5 Engagement with traders / format for 
Committee trader representation 
Review the current activity giving 
structure to representation and in doing 
so seek advice from the National 
Market Traders Federation (NMTF). 

Spring 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E,  
P&F 

NMTF have a revised scheme for supporting 
trader representations.  
Ref: 22/MK – 21/11/19 - Proposal drafted for 
Committee consideration.   
 
   
 

 
 

A 

P
age 31



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix B 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

DRAFT 27/02/2020 V1 

 

6 Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 

Autumn 
2020 

Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Recommendations to P&F for endorsement if 
applicaple. 
 

 

7 Annual monitoring review  
As per relaunch anniversary date.  
 

Autumn 2020 Market Sub, 
C&E, 
P&F 

Inc. point No.6 above - Review of current pitch 
sizes and pricing. Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 

 
 
 

 

ACTIVITY DELIVERY PLAN  

 Themed Markets 2020/2021 Comments 

11th April Easter Egg Hunt  

TBC Easter Ride Out 
Collaboration with LB Scooter 
Club 

 

16th - 30th May International Love your local 
Market fortnight, #LYLM 

 

4th July Independents’ Day 
Collaboration with LB First 

 

4th August National Children’s Play Day  

27th October Children’s Halloween Letter 
Hunt 

 

5th December Small Business Saturday 
Collaboration with FSB ??? 

 

TBC 22nd December Christmas Eve Market  

 Visiting Markets 2020/2021  

 27th March, 24th April, 29th May, 26th 
June, 31st July, 28th Aug, 25th Sept. 
(Last Friday of the month) 

Street Food Heroes  

Fri 3rd April France at Home Market  

P
age 32



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix B 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

DRAFT 27/02/2020 V1 

  

TBC Vegan Market  

 Speciality Markets 2020/2021  

28th Nov Christmas Festival Weekend     

TBC 2020 Community Market   

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34



Working with a New Government
We have already have an excellent relationship through the All Party Parliamentary Markets Group 
and the DHCLG Retail Markets Forum. We want to maintain these partnerships and improve on the 
current links so that Markets have a meaninful presence in national initiatives affecting our industry.

Markets and the High Street Renaissance
Markets are such a vital part of High Streets and we want to see our role fully acknowledged and 
given appropriate support.

Encouraging Start Up Business
NABMA LYLM Campaign and NMTF Young Traders Campaign have given thousands of people the chance 
to start up a market business. We want formal recognition and support for the work we undertake.

Business Rates 
This is a heavy burden for many local authority market operators in particular. We want to provide the 
same support to local authorities as currently enjoyed by private retailers by giving local authorities 
the flexibility to discount business rates from Markets.

Markets and Young People
Young People are the future of our industry and we need support to encourage more young people 
to look at Markets as a serious career option. The work currently undertaken with Colleges and 
Universities need to be set within a recognised educational framework at national level.

Markets and their Historic Buildings
So many Markets are housed in historic buildings that need extensive renovation. We need further 
support from Historic Buildings Funding to ensure the successful future of these buildings.

Regional Markets Boards
London have led the way way with a Markets Board which is looking at Markets across the capital 
and taking the lead with a number of strategic objectives. We need to work to replicate these Market 
Boards in other areas across the country.

Markets Manifesto 2019

www.mission4markets.uk       @M4Markets       #M4Markets

NABMA
 the voice of markets

Mission for Markets is a campaign run by NABMA and the 
NMTF, two industry organisations that, respectively, represent 
the interests of the operators of markets in the UK, and the 
micro and small businesses who trade on them.

The National Association of British Market Authorities and the National Market Traders 
Federation, on behalf of the whole retail and wholesale markets industry in the UK, put 
forward the following issues for consideration and action during the next Parliament.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    27 February 2020 
 
Title:   Market Budget Report 
 
Purpose of the Report: To update Committee on market budgets 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 

 

Corporate Objective/s  Aim 2: To promote & develop a vibrant town through 
partnership working & initiatives including management of 
the street market, provision of town & community 
promotions, town centre enhancements, tourism & practical 
support for local businesses 

Implications:   

Financial √ Income and expenditure figures. 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded the recommendation is: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The information provides an understanding of quarterly financial details. All 

figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and rounded 
up to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and 
expenditure received and paid during the months presented.  

 
2.2 The quarterly figures provided reflect a two-year financial period, not a calendar 

two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 12.   
 
2.3      Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including 

staffing. It was noted by Committee that a more detailed expenditure report 
would be produced as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports 
which would be provided to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic 
Services.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



  
3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 

2018/19 
 
3.1 Income, expenditure and net for October to December 2019/20. 
 

 
 

 
Income 

 

All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any 
further absence is charged and paid for. 

 
 Contracted service invoices are not always received within the budget quarter 

being presented and contribute to the variance in monthly figures. For example, 
this quarter, the difference in the October 18 - 19 expenditure is caused by 
security and rate payments being made in Oct 18 but not in Oct 19. This is also 
the case when comparing November 18 -19 and December 18 – 19.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-£60,000.00

-£40,000.00

-£20,000.00

 £-

 £20,000.00

Oct-18 Oct-19 Nov-18 Nov-19 Dec-18 Dec-19 Total

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for Oct 
2019 - Dec 2019 vs. Oct 2018 - Dec 2018

Total Income Total Expenditure Total

Income 
Summary 

Oct-18 Oct-19 Nov-18 Nov-19 Dec-18 Dec-19 TOTAL 

Total Income  £       
9,617.00 

 
 £       

7,672.00 
 

 £       
7,278.00 

    
£    

7,168.00 

 £     
7,121.00 

£    
8,385.00 

 
£ 

47,241.00  

Total 
Expenditure  

- £      
9,092.00  

- £      
8440.00 

 -£    
7,927.00  

 -£    
10,039.00  

 -£    
10,124.00  

 -£  
7113.00 

-£  
52,735.00  

Difference £         
525.00  

- £        
768.00  

-£      
649.00  

-£       
2871.00  

-£  
  3,003.00  

£   1272  -£ 
5494.00  

Page 38



  
 
3.2 Income comparison for per market day/type Oct to Dec 2019/20.  

 

 
Total Market 

Income 
Oct 18 Oct 19 Nov 18 Nov 19 Dec 18 Dec 19 

Tuesday £ 3,525.00   

£ 3,628.00*  

 

 £ 2697.00   £ 3,385.00  £ 2,368.00    

£ 3,160.00~  
 

Saturday £ 4,188.00 £ 3,013.00*  

 

 £ 3562.00   £ 2,749.00^   £ 4,067.00    
£ 

4,579.00~  

 

Farmers £ 126.00 £ 126.00  £ 144.00   £ 144.00   £ 126.00   £ 126.00  

Speciality 
(Inc Pop-Up) 

£ 45.00 £ 365.00  £ 45.00   £ 15.00   £ 45.00   £ 0  

Handmade & 
Craft 

£ 200.00 £ 240.00  £ 220.00   £ 280.00   £ 120.00   £ 220.00~ 

Commercial £ 700.00+ £ -  £ 600.00   £ 600.00   £ 300.00  £ 300.00  

Other £833.00+ £ 300.00  £ 10.00    £ 95.00     £  -    

Total £ 9,617.00 £ 7,672.00   
£ 7,278.00  
 

  
£ 7,168.00  
 

£ 7,121.00  
 

  
£ 8,385.00  
 

 
Income 

*  Wet and windy days (Sat and Tues) with traders missing which resulted in reduced 

income for Oct 19. 
+  ‘Commercial’ and ‘Other’ income is higher in Oct 18 compared to Oct 19. 

^  The Inclement Weather Policy was implemented in Nov 19 where 3 traders attended 

-£200.00

 £-

 £200.00

 £400.00

 £600.00

 £800.00

 £1,000.00

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Total

Other Market Income for October -
December 2019

Farmers

Speciality (Inc Pop-Up)

Handmade & Craft

Commercial

Other

 £-

 £2,000.00

 £4,000.00

 £6,000.00

 £8,000.00

 £10,000.00

 £12,000.00

Oct-
19

Nov-
19

Dec-
19

Total

Tuesday Saturday

Tuesday & Saturday 
Market Income for 

October - December 2019

Page 39



  
    the market. This caused a possible loss of income of approximately £675 -£800. 

~ Increase in market income in Dec 19 across the Tuesday, Saturday and Handmade 

    Craft markets of £1,404 compared to Dec 18. 

 
      
3.3 ‘Actual year to date’ against predicted ‘Current Annual Budget’ 2019/20.  
 

 Annual 
Summary 

2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 Qu.3 Budget for 2019/20 

Total Income  £    82,847.00   £    82,576.00   £    65,525 .00 £    87,550.00 

Total 
Expenditure 

- £ 112,562.00   -£ 115,726.00  -£   90,489.00 -£   120,498.00 

Net Income -£   29,715.00  -£   33,150.00  -£   24,964.00 -£   32,948.00 
i.e. Agreed anticipated 

budget  subsidy  

 
3.4 Despite having lost trading dates this financial year due to weather, the market 
 is performing reasonably against the profiled budget for 2019/20.  
 
 
  END 

Page 40



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 (2)



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 MARKET TRADER REPRESENTATION
	5. Appendix A_Trader Representative NMTF_Group_Guidelines_v4

	6 MARKET PITCH FEES ARREARS PROCEDURE
	6. Appendix A._DRAFT 2020 Market Pitch Fee Arrears Procedure V5

	7 MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
	7.Appendix A_Market Annual Work Plan_UPDATE_27 Feb 2020
	7. Appendix B_DRAFT 2020_21 Market Annual Work & Annual Activity Plans
	7. Appendix D_Mission for Markets Manifesto 2019

	8 BUDGET REPORT
	10 MARKET OPERATIONS

